
 
 

 
AGENDA          
CITY OF NEW BERN PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
 
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 – 5:30 P.M. 
Development Services Conference Room 
303 First Street, New Bern, NC 28560 
 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:     August 3, 2023 

             
3. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. “WEST NEW BERN, PARCEL A: GENERAL PLAN”___________________________  

Parcel Identification Numbers: 8-209-13001 &  Number of New Parcels: 1 
 8-209-12003      Zoning: C-3 & R10-A 
Location: 3000 Mahew Drive     
Property Owners: Weyerhaeuser Real Estate 
Applicant: McKim and Creed 

 
B. “WEST NEW BERN, PARCEL A: FINAL PLAN”______________________________  

Parcel Identification Numbers: 8-209-13001 &  Number of New Parcels: 1 
 8-209-12003      Zoning: C-3 & R10-A 
Location: 3000 Mahew Drive     
Property Owners: Weyerhaeuser Real Estate 
Applicant: McKim and Creed 
 

C. LAND USE ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT________________________________    
Code Section: Section 15-343 “Flexibility in administration required.”  
Applicant:  City of New Bern  
 

4. STAFF UPDATES 
 

5. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT  



 

 1 

Minutes of the 
City of New Bern Planning & Zoning Board 

August 3, 2023 – 5:30 P.M. 
Development Services Conference Room – 303 First Street 

 1 
The regular meeting of the New Bern Planning and Zoning Board was held in the Development 2 
Services Conference Room, 303 First Stret, on August 3, 2023, 2023, at 5:30 pm. 3 
 4 
Members Present:     Brad Jefferson, Chair 5 

Raymond Layton 6 
Margie Dunn 7 
Kelly Keiser 8 
Sonny Aluzzo 9 
Kyle Dearing 10 
Marshall Ballard 11 

 12 
Members Excused (E)/ Absent (A):  Rusty Ingram 13 
     14 
Staff & Counsel Present:    Jessica Rhue, Development Services Director 15 

Matthew Schelly, City Planner 16 
Jaimee Bullock-Mosely, Assistant City Attorney  17 

 18 
Mr. Brad Jefferson, Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.  19 
 20 
1. Roll Call 21 
 22 
Staff member Matt Schelly delivered the roll call, a quorum was present. 23 
 24 
Chair Jefferson asked new member Kelly Keiser to introduce herself.      25 
 26 
2. Approval of Minutes: July 7, 2020, August 6, 2020, September 10, 2020, December 1, 27 
2020, and July 5, 2023. 28 
 29 
Ms. Dunn said she was missing from the minutes on the August 6, 2020, and would like to have a 30 
correction made to reflect if she was present or absent.   31 
 32 
Ms. Dunn made a motion to accept all minutes, seconded by Mr. Aluzzo.  The motion passed 33 
by a unanimous vote. 34 
 35 
3.A: West New Bern, Parcel A: General Plan 36 
 37 
Staff member Schelly presented the item. Residential District.  38 
 39 
Cliff Parsons of Ward and Smith spoke on behalf of the applicant.  Updated maps were distributed 40 
to the Board.  Mr. Parsons explained that recently the applicant had requested a land swap that was 41 



 

 2 

being considered by the Board of Aldermen at their August 22nd meeting and would like to 42 
continue item A on the September 5, 2023, agenda.  43 
 44 
Mr. Derring made a motion to continue the item as requested, Mr. Aluzzo seconded the 45 
motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 46 
 47 
3.B: West New Bern, Parcel A: Final Plan 48 
 49 
The applicant requested to also continue item B on the September 5, 2023, agenda. 50 
 51 
Mr. Derring made a motion to continue the item as requested, Mr. Aluzzo seconded the 52 
motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 53 
 54 
3.C: Land Use Ordinance Text Amendment: 15-343 “Flexibility in administration required”. 55 
 56 
Director Jessica Rhue presented item C and had an overview of the conversation about parking 57 
from previous meetings. 58 
 59 
Ms. Dunn expressed her concern about parking being pushed into the residential area. Mr. Layton 60 
stated he would offset that concern considering there is a fair amount of parking that is city owned 61 
public parking. Mr. Aluzzo stated he liked the option with the Special Use Permit included. After 62 
a lengthy discussion the board agreed on having the option with Special Use Permit included in 63 
the next packet for action.   64 
 65 
Mr. Layton made a motion to continue this item on the September 5, 2023, agenda, Ms. Dunn 66 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 67 
 68 
4. Staff Updates  69 
 70 
Ms. Rhue gave an update on staffing turnover.   71 
 72 
5.  Board Member Comments 73 
 74 
Ms. Dunn welcomed new board member Kelly. 75 
 76 
6.  Adjourn 77 
Mr. Aluzzo made a motion to adjourn the meeting; Second by Mr. Layton. Motion passed 78 
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 5:58 p.m.  79 
 80 
Meeting time: 27 minutes. 81 
 82 
Date Approved:___________________   ______________________________ 83 
        Brad Jefferson, Chair 84 
 85 
Attest: ___________________________________________ 86 
 Matt Schelly, Interim Land & Community Development Administrator. 87 



 

 
Development Services 

303 First Street, P.O. Box 1129 
New Bern, NC 28563 

(252)639-7581 
 
                                                    MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   City of New Bern Planning & Zoning Board  
 
FROM: Matt Schelly, City Planner  
 
DATE: August 29, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  General Plan Consideration of West New Bern, Kyrios, LLC, Parcel A  
 
Analysis 
Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development Company is requesting subdivision General 
Plan approval for “West New Bern, Kyrios, LLC Parcel A.”  This subdivision would 
remove 0.88 +/- acres from a 114.78 +/- -acre Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development 
Company tract in the C-3 Commercial District and proposes a 250-foot +/- extension of 
Mayhew Drive on the remainder of that tract. Also, this subdivision would remove 0.23 
+/- acres from the 1.47 +/- -acre City of New Bern “Well Site #8” parcel in the R-10A 
Residential District.  These two subdivided portions would be combined to create a new 
1.11-acre parcel, “Parcel A,” owned by Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development 
Company.  The Zoning district boundaries would not be changed. 
The properties are located along Mayhew Drive in the West New Bern community. The 
“parent” properties are further identified as Craven County Parcel Identification #8-209-
13001 and #8-209-12003.   
Utilities and services will be provided by the City of New Bern. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the proposed subdivision and finds that all technical and legal 
requirements for general subdivision plan approval have been satisfied according to the 
City of New Bern Land Use Ordinance. The City of New Bern Public Works, Fire, Water 
Resources, and Electric Departments have no objections to the proposed subdivision.  
Therefore, General Subdivision Plan approval of West New Bern, Kyrios, LLC Parcel A 
is recommended. 





 

 
Development Services 

303 First Street, P.O. Box 1129 
New Bern, NC 28563 

(252)639-7581 
 
                                                    MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   City of New Bern Planning & Zoning Board  
 
FROM: Matt Schelly, City Planner 
 
DATE:  August 29, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Plan Consideration of West New Bern Kyrios, LLC, Parcel A 
 
Analysis 
Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development Company is requesting subdivision Final Plan 
approval for “West New Bern, Kyrios, LLC Parcel A.”  This subdivision would remove 
0.88 +/- acres from a 114.78 +/- -acre Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development 
Company tract in the C-3 Commercial District and proposes a 250-foot +/- extension of 
Mayhew Drive on the remainder of that tract. Also, this subdivision would remove 0.23 
+/- acres from the 1.47 +/- -acre City of New Bern “Well Site #8” parcel in the R-10A 
Residential District.  These two subdivided portions would be combined to create a new 
1.11-acre parcel, “Parcel A,” owned by Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Development 
Company.  The Zoning district boundaries would not be changed. 
The properties are located along Mayhew Drive in the West New Bern community. The 
“parent” properties are further identified as Craven County Parcel Identification #8-209-
13001 and #8-209-12003.   
   
Recommendation 
West New Bern, Kyrios, LLC Parcel A (one lot on 1.11 acres) received General Plan 
approval from the City of New Bern Planning & Zoning Board on September 5th, 2023. 
Staff has reviewed the proposed subdivision and finds that all technical and legal 
requirements for final subdivision plan approval have been satisfied according to the 
City of New Bern Land Use Ordinance. The Director of Public works has approved the 
bond estimate ($271,320.00). Therefore, final subdivision plan approval of West New 
Bern, Kyrios, LLC Parcel A is recommended, contingent upon the City Attorney’s 
approval of the performance bond for the extension of Mayhew Drive.   





 

 

Development Services 
303 First Street, P.O. Box 1129 

New Bern, NC 28563 
(252)639-7581 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   City of New Bern Planning & Zoning Board  
 
FROM:  Jessica F. Rhue, Director of Development Services  
 
DATE:   September 5, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Off-Street Parking requirements in the Historic Downtown 
 
Over the past three regular meetings of the Planning and Zoning Board, the City’s requirements for 

off-street parking in the historic downtown area have been discussed.  Staff explained that the City of 
New Bern Land Use Ordinance requires off-street parking to be provided for new commercial 
developments and “change-of-use” occupancy within existing structures.  To encourage the reuse of 
these existing building and have legally enforceable and commonsensical parking laws, staff 
researched what other sister cities with similar characteristics have adopted. Most historical and coastal 
cities with public parking available do not apply parking standards in their downtown areas in order to 
facilitate the reuse of buildings, and also to protect historic buildings from being removed to create 
parking.  The City of New Bern has approximately 600 public parking spaces that are not included in 
any parking calculations.   
 
The consensus of the Planning & Zoning Board at the August 3, 2023 meeting was to direct staff to 
draft language to discuss and potentially recommend that includes the following: 
 

• Expand the exempted parking area from the existing area described above to include real 
estate to the west side of East Front Street and down to the south side of South Front Steet. 

• Maintain the current short term rental parking requirements even if the boundary is expanded. 
• Prohibit the elimination of any parking that exists within the new boundary (after the date of 

adoption of any potential changes) unless a Special Use Permit (SUP) is granted by the Board 
of Adjustment. 
 

Please see the requested draft ordinance amendments and parking area map for reference.  
 



BROAD ST

CR
AV

EN
 ST

E F
RO

NT
 STME

TC
AL

F S
T

MI
DD

LE
 ST

S FRONT ST

POLLOCK ST

HA
NC

OC
K 

ST

SKY SAIL BLVDLegend
Current Exclusion Zone
Propposed Addtion

Private Parking
Public Parking ±0 300 600150 Feet

HA
NC

OC
K

ST

Red 
Bear 
Lot

Gold
Bear 
Lot

27

22
18 10 56

14

42

23

59

2821

86

70

74

39
5

138

30
32

56

6748

38

72

10
17 76

29
26

44

21 27

44

6

10

3

53

Courtyard
by Marriott

City Hall

Convention
Center

1st Citizens
Bank

Morgans

10 12
38

13



  REDLINE VERSION 

Page 1 of 2 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A “LAND USE” OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN 
  

THAT WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of New Bern ________ 

recommends that certain amendments be made to Appendix A “Land Use” of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of New Bern; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s development services staff further recommends approval of said 

proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern deems it advisable and in the 

public interest to effect said revisions to Appendix A “Land Use” of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of New Bern. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF NEW BERN: 

 SECTION 1. That Section 15-343. “Flexibility in administration required.” Of Article 

XVIII. “Parking” of Appendix A “Land Use” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of New Bern 

be and the same is hereby amended by deleting subsections (b) and (e) in their entirety and the 

following inserted in their stead: 

“Sec. 15-343.  Flexibility in administration required. 

… 

(b) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the permit-issuing authority may 
allow deviations from the parking requirements set forth in subsection 15-342(g) when it finds 
that:  

(1) A residential development is irrevocably oriented toward the elderly;  

(2) A residential development is located in close proximity to the central 

business district and is committed to a policy of placing restrictions on the vehicle ownership of 

its tenants; or 

(3) A business is primarily oriented to walk-in trade; or . 

(4) A residential or nonresidential development is located within one of the 

city's designated National Register historic districts. 

… 

(e) Notwithstanding any other provision in this section, developments located in the 
central retail core (defined as the area encompassing those properties abutting the east side of 
Craven Street, the east side of Hancock street, the north south side of Tryon Palace Drive South 



  REDLINE VERSION 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Front Street, the west side of East Front Street, the south side of Broad Street from the west side 
of East Front Street to west side of Craven Street, and the north side of Broad Street from the east 
side of Craven to the east side of Street Hancock Street) shall be exempt from off-street parking 
requirements except those requirements set forth in subsection 15-163(h)(3)., provided such 
development may reduce the number of parking spaces in existence as of the date of the adoption 
of this this section by special use permit. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its adoption. 

ADOPTED this _____day of _______________, 2023. 

 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      JEFFREY T. ODHAM, MAYOR 
 
 
____________________________________ 
BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK 



 
 
 
 

Everything Comes Together Here 

 

CONSISTENCY STATEMENT 
Section 15-343 Flexibility in Administration Required 

 
Whereas, the City of New Bern Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed potential modifications 
to Section 15-343 and finds the proposed changes to be consistent with the 2022 Land Use Plan 
Update and 2010 Land Use Plan;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of New Bern Planning and Zoning Board that the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment and presented documentation are found to be 
consistent with the City's 2022 Land Use Plan Update and 2010 Land Use Plan; and are 
determined to be reasonable and in the public interest.  
 
Adopted this the 5th day of September, 2023 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Brad Jefferson, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  
Matthew Schelly, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

   

   
   
   
   
   
 300 Pollock Street, P.O. Box 1129  
 New Bern, NC 28563-1129  
 (252) 636-4000  


	09052023_P&Z Agenda
	09052023_P&Z Agenda packet
	09052023_P&Z Agenda packet
	09052023_P&Z Agenda
	Memo WNB parcel A General Plan 2023-08-29
	GenPlan_West New Bern Sub. Plat Kyrios, LLC plat dated 2023-08-10
	Memo WNB Parcel A Final Plan 2023-08-29
	FinalPlan_West New Bern Sub. Plat Kyrios, LLC plat dated 2023-08-10
	Memo - Downtown parking September 5
	Central Retail Core Expansion map 2
	Downtown Parking Ordinance- SUP required- Redline
	Consistency Statement Downtown Parking

	08032023 Minutes


